
 

MINUTES 

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2025 AT 4:00 PM 

     COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 150 EAST MONROE STREET  

WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 

 

1. Persons Present: 

Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison, Interim 
Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town Attorney 
Paul Cassell, Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones, Director of Public Utilities and Engineering 
Billy Anderson, Computer Operations Manager Ron Jude, Police Sergeant Chastity 
Russell, Computer Operations Specialist Lucas Nester 

Persons Absent: 

Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr. 

2. RE: ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED 

A. Approval of Agenda 

Mayor Taylor advised that the first agenda item is the Approval of Agenda, and this 
required a motion and approval by the Council.  

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman 
Pattison to amend the agenda to include voting on salary increases for an employee 
at the Police Department and two employees of the Town Clerk's Department, and to 
add a Closed Meeting pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the 
acquisition of real property for a public purpose. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was 
any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the 
following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor 
Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

B. Discussion regarding a sight obstruction on Peppers Ferry Road and possible 
realignment of the Oakwood Cemetery fence 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the discussion regarding a sight 
obstruction on Peppers Ferry Road and possible realignment of the Oakwood 
Cemetery fence. Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Anderson stated that in 
the Council's meeting packet, there is information regarding the sight history for 
property located at 500 Peppers Ferry Road and the Oakwood Cemetery fence. He 
then reviewed the history of this property and the current improvements that are 
being made with the Council. Director Anderson noted that Staff received a complaint 
about the sight obstruction, and that Staff made a sight visit to asses the situation. He 
commented that a preliminary sight distance measurement was checked utilizing 



standards from the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT). Director Anderson 
stated that the sight distance left, when viewing in the direction of the cemetery fence 
from a point in the entrance, was about 10 feet off of the travel lane. He noted that 
this gives motorists only about 100 to 125 feet sight distance, and the VDOT 
standard for a four-lane, undivided major highway with a posted 35 mile per hour 
speed limit is 415 feet sight distance left and 440 feet sight distance right. Director 
Anderson advised that a request was made by the developer to temporarily remove 
portions of the fence to allow for sight distance measurements to be made and 
determine if there is a notable improvement. He commented that this request was 
approved, and that Town staff conducted a second sight distance measurement with 
portions of the fence removed. He then discussed the results of the second sight 
distance measurement with the Council. Director Anderson stated that to improve 
safety when exiting the entrance, the corner post of the fence could be relocated 
eight (8) feet north of its existing location. Discussion continued regarding the 
potential relocation of the fence at the Oakwood Cemetery, and the limited ability to 
improve the entrance due to potential burials. Mayor Taylor inquired if Director 
Anderson was going to bring back a quote to the Council regarding the potential cost 
of the project. Director Anderson stated that the company, Geomodel, will email him 
a formal quote, and that they would sweep the cemetery area, pin potential areas 
and produce paperwork with potential gravesites. He noted that this would need to be 
done before the potential fence relocation. Councilwoman Pattison inquired when the 
Virginia Department of Corrections (VADOC) anticipate the completion and opening 
of this facility. Director Anderson advised that the VADOC is, probably, on schedule 
to be completed this year. He noted that he thinks they will begin paving before cold 
weather begins. Councilwoman Pattison stated that she does not see a reason to 
delay giving Engineering staff an answer to pursue this project, due to safety 
concerns. Discussion was held regarding continuing with the fence relocation project, 
and the next steps, if there is discovery of burials next to the proposed relocation 
sight in the Oakwood Cemetery.  

A motion was made by Councilwoman Pattison and seconded by Vice-Mayor 
Johnson to allow the Engineering Department to proceed with relocating the fence at 
the Oakwood Cemetery, if there are no burials and nothing to be disturbed in the 
path of the projected fence relocation. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any 
discussion on the motion. Director Anderson stated that he will check with Public 
Works Supervisor Jason Luttrell to see if there is any money available in the 
Cemetery Fund to help assist with this. He advised that once Geomodel has 
completed the work, he will bring an update back to the Council with their findings. A 
brief discussion was held regarding the ability to see around the block retaining wall 
near the cemetery from the DOC facility's entrance, Staff's suggestion to move this 
section of fence back at the cemetery, the potential fence relocation cost and why 
this project has become the Town's responsibility if the DOC's engineer could have 
developed a new entrance with increased visibility. Councilwoman Pattison and Vice-
Mayor Johnson withdrew the motion, due to the discussion regarding the DOC not 
having their engineer reconfigure a new entrance with increased motorist visibility. 
Town Attorney Cassell stated that he would discuss this matter with Director 
Anderson and bring an update back to the Council at the next meeting.  



C. Review of Ordinance No. 1456, an ordinance amending and reenacting Chapter 
7, License and Business Regulations, Article I. In General, Section 7.1 Agents, 
Canvassers or Solicitors for Door to Door Sales, Political Parties Exempted, of 
the Code of the Town of Wytheville, Virginia, to add an additional exemption for 
public service providers 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to review Ordinance No. 1456, an 
ordinance amending and reenacting Chapter 7, License and Business Regulations, 
Article I. In General, Section 7.1 Agents, Canvassers or Solicitors for Door to Door 
Sales, Political Parties Exempted, of the Code of the Town of Wytheville, Virginia, to 
add an additional exemption for public service providers. Interim Town Manager 
Corvin stated that this ordinance is for the Council's review. She noted that there has 
been a change in the State Law that states that the Town cannot keep public service 
providers from canvassing neighborhoods. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised 
that she has highlighted the changes regarding public service providers in yellow. 
She commented that this ordinance is just for review, and that it will be considered for 
adoption at the September 8, Town Council meeting. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if 
the Council could go ahead and vote to adopt Ordinance No. 1456, at this meeting. 
Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that the Council is welcome to adopt Ordinance 
No. 1456, at this meeting, if they would like.  

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman 
Pattison to adopt Ordinance No. 1456, an ordinance amending and reenacting 
Chapter 7, License and Business Regulations, Article I. In General, Section 7.1 
Agents, Canvassers or Solicitors for Door to Door Sales, Political Parties Exempted, 
of the Code of the Town of Wytheville, Virginia, to add an additional exemption for 
public service providers, on first and final reading. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was 
any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the 
following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vic-Mayor Johnson, Mayor 
Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison. 

D. Review of Town Council Rules of Procedure for 2025 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the review of the Town Council 
Rules of Procedure for 2025. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that she brought 
this document before the Council for their review, so they can see if there are any 
changes that they would for Staff to make. She noted that she would like to ask the 
Council if they would consider developing a document that would be agreeable with 
all of the Council for all of the Council members to follow. Interim Town Manager 
Corvin advised that, if the Council members wanted to take the Rules of Procedure 
and read them, she would be more than happy to make any changes or additions 
they would like. Mayor Taylor stated that she would like for the Council to read and 
review this document and have Staff bring it back to a future meeting. Interim Town 
Manager Corvin advised that she will bring this document back to the September 9, 
Work Session meeting, and that she will incorporate any changes that have been 
requested. Mayor Taylor inquired if Interim Town Manager Corvin could send an 
email to the Council members who are absent from this meeting regarding this topic. 
Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that she would email those Council members.   



E. Discussion regarding audio system speakers in the downtown area 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a discussion regarding audio 
system speakers in the downtown area. Computer Operations Manager Jude stated 
that he was asked to look at the speakers downtown. He noted that there are, at 
least, 30 to 35 speakers in the downtown area that have been damaged or are not 
working. Computer Operations Manager Jude advised that there is an area near the 
Saint Mary Mother of God Church where the speakers are not playing audio around 
the whole block. He stated that Staff contacted the company, StageSound, regarding 
the speakers that are not functioning properly in downtown. Computer Operations 
Manager Jude noted that the speakers that are, currently, in the downtown area have 
a new design and that the quoted price for those speakers and the equipment to go 
with them is around $28,111.02. He advised that there is a possibility that all of the 
speaker equipment may not be needed, based on the conditions of the speaker. 
Computer Operations Manager Jude commented that there is a new kind of 
landscape speaker, and the price quote for those are around $425.22, each. He then 
presented information regarding the new landscape speaker, gave a comparison of 
the two landscape speakers and discussed which speakers would be best for specific 
locations in downtown. Mayor Taylor inquired about a previous discussion regarding 
the vandalism of some speakers, and asked how many of the speakers were 
vandalized. Computer Operations Manager Jude stated that the majority of the 
problem is not vandalism. He noted that the main cause of damaged or broken 
speakers is weed eaters, lawn mowers, storms, etc. Computer Operations Manager 
Jude commented that a lot more speakers have went missing within the last six (6) 
months. He stated that it looks like they have been torn out of the ground, and that 
they are mostly going missing and being damaged around Saint Mary's Church. 
Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that repair and/or replacement of the speakers 
in the downtown area is another unbudgeted item. She advised that this topic was 
discussed because Staff received a request to pick up the broken speaker heads. 
Interim Town Manager Corvin commented that it is not as simple as just picking up 
the broken heads, because they are all connected by wires, cables, etc. Mayor Taylor 
stated that she needs more information regarding the process of repairing and/or 
replacing the speakers that are downtown. Interim Town Manager Corvin noted that 
she believes that they can just repair or replace the broken speakers in certain areas. 
Computer Operations Manager Jude commented that the Council could allocate a 
certain amount of money and replace one specific area at a time. Discussion was 
held regarding which speaker Computer Operations Manager Jude thinks will work 
best for the downtown area, and the idea of potentially purchasing a new mushroom 
style speaker to see how the Council likes it. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if the 
current speakers were part of the original Main Street Program. Interim Town 
Manager Corvin stated that they were originally part of the Main Street Program. 
Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if the funds for the speakers was given in the form of a 
grant, or if the funds were given to Downtown Wytheville, Incorporated. Interim Town 
Manager Corvin stated that she is not sure, and that will need to check on that.  

F. Discussion regarding a proposed joint meeting of the Wytheville Town Council 
and the Wytheville Planning Commission regarding the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) 



Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the discussion regarding a 
proposed joint meeting of the Wytheville Town Council and the Wytheville Planning 
Commission regarding the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Assistant Town 
Manager Holeton stated that a request was made by the Planning Commission to 
meet with the Town Council to discuss the UDO, and that the Town Council agreed 
to schedule a joint meeting. She noted that Staff has found it difficult to schedule a 
time that works best for both bodies. Assistant Town Manager Holeton commented 
that she thought she could, hopefully, work with the Meeting Center to find a time that 
one of their meeting rooms will be available, and send out a Doodle Poll to the 
Council and Planning Commission members to choose between five (5) and eight (8) 
dates that will potentially work for everyone. It was the consensus of the Council to 
allow Assistant Town Manager Holeton to work with the Meeting Center, and to send 
a Doodle Poll to the Council and Planning Commission members in hopes of 
scheduling a joint meeting to discuss the UDO. 

G. Voting on salary increases for an employee at the Police Department and two 
(2) employees of the Town Clerk's Department 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to vote on salary increases for an 
employee at the Police Department and two (2) employees of the Town Clerk's 
Department. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that the Council is familiar with 
both of these salary increase requests for the Police Department and the Town 
Clerk's Department. She noted that the Town's Ordinance stated that the Council 
needs to vote to approve these salary increases. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a 
motion to approve salary increases for an employee at the Police Department and 
two (2) employees of the Town Clerk's Department.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

H. Closed Meeting pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the 
acquisition of real property for a public purpose 

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary for the Council to go into a 
Closed Meeting pursuant to section 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the 
acquisition of real property for a public purpose. She inquired if there was a motion to 
go into a Closed Meeting. 

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison. (5:07 p.m.)  

I. Certification of Closed Meeting 

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting. 
She noted that it would also be necessary to reconvene into open session. Mayor 



Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting held pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the acquisition of real property for a 
public purpose and that only public business matters that were identified in the 
motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the 
Council.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison (5:34 p.m.)  

J. Council decision regarding an offer from the Wythe Arts Council to purchase 
the Haller House 

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman 
Pattison to decline the offer to purchase the Haller House, located at 195 West 
Washington Street, from the Wythe Arts Council. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was 
any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the 
following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor 
Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

3. RE: ADJOURNMENT  

There being no further business to be discussed, the Work Session was adjourned. (5:35 
p.m.) 
 
 

 

                 
      Sharon G. Corvin, CMC, Interim Town Manager 
 
 

 

          
Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk 


